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DEPARMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES

SOCIAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION (SSA)

Office of Adult Services

Invitation for Bids (IFB)
In-Home Aide Services

(SSA/IHAS 16-001-S)

QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES 1

Question 1:

Who are the incumbent vendors and what are their hourly rates for these  services?

Response:

DHR will post a list of vendors on the DHR website and emaryland marketplace.   This list will also include the budgeted amounts for each jurisdiction.  Please note that DHR cannot provide hourly rates.  
Question 2:  

What was the annual expenditure on this contract for last 3 years?
Response:   

$ 3,343,693.00 per year
Question 3:  

Can you please verify if the vendors will invoice the State of Maryland an 

                          hourly rate for these services or will the vendors be required to bill Medicare for reimbursement?
Response:   

Vendors will invoice the State of Maryland (State) through the local department of social services (LDSS) for the jurisdiction in which it provides services.  Vendors will invoice the State at the hourly rates proposed on Attachment F. 
Question 4:  

Section 1.1.4 Does the prime contractor has to provide staff for every 

           

location identified in 1.1.3?
Response:   

The vendor is required to have a total of 1 RN and 5 CNA’s by the Go Live date for the contract(s) (regardless of the number of jurisdictions the vendor is awarded).  Again, vendors can bid on more than one jurisdiction with the understanding that they need to provide service to every corner of those jurisdictions if awarded a contract. Failure to provide service in a jurisdictions could result in suspension of referrals in all jurisdictions awarded to that vendor. 
Question 5:    
How many patients do you have per county?
Response:    
The following numbers are the number of clients who received IHAS in April 2015 in jurisdictions that are participating in this solicitation (note: some clients listed below receive IHAS through LDSSs instead of IHAS contractors/vendors):
Allegany County – 66

Baltimore City – 126              

Baltimore County – 154         

Calvert County – 18              

Caroline County – 33            

Carroll County – 31             

Charles County – 37              

Dorchester County- 26          

Frederick County- 66         

Harford County- 21

Howard County-9  

Prince Georges County- 87

Queen Annes County-14

St. Mary’s County- 14

Somerset County- 28

Talbot County-32

Washington County-112

Wicomico-22

Worcester-26

Question 6:    
Would I, a potential bidder, provide a vendor list?

Response:    
DHR will post a list of current IHAS vendors on its website and emaryland marketplace.  Bidders are required to identify staff it will use on an IHAS contract and their licenses/certifications with their Bids.  

Question 7:    
In regards to IFB Section 3.2.1 (E), can Bidders state whether they will comply with each reqiuirement, or do they need to submit resumes and/or licenses with proposals considering item G? 

Response: 

Bidders need to include license/certifications for staff with their Bids. bid. 

Question 8:    
Do you want the staff to complete (AHA) CPR training?


Response: 

Per IFB Section 3.2.1 (G), all staff shall be CPR certified. 


Question 9:

Who are the incumbent vendors on the current contract? Will a list be 

                                 
posted? 

Response:     
Please see the response to Question 1. 

Question 10:    
What is the pricing of the incumbents on the current contract?  Will this also be made available?

Response:    
Please see the response to Question 1.
         
Question 11:    
How many contracted employees are working on the current contract?

Response:      
Information about the current vendors will be posted on the DHR Website and emaryland marketplace.   Please note that this information will not include the number of employees working for the vendors.
         
Question 12:    
Who is the main point of contact?

Response:      
The main point of contact for a vendor, prior to Bid opening, will be the Procurement Officer listed in IFB Section 1.5.  Following Bid opening, contractors should contact the local Department IHAS supervisor in the jurisdictions the contractor will service. 
         
Question 13:    
What determinants are included in the award decision? Is pricing the most 

                                  
important determinant for Department of Human Resources?
         
Response:       
Please refer to Section 1.15 of the IFB.

         
Question 14:    
Is the MBE/WBE goal a requirement for the contract, or can it be waived?

Response:        This procurement does not have an MBE/WBE or VSBE goal.  
         
Question 15:    
How many awarded vendors will be chosen for this contract?
         
Response:       
There is no set limit on the number of awards DHR may make. 
         
Question 16:   
What challenges has DHR experienced with previous vendors? 

Response:      
Challenges with some vendors have included: not submitting invoices in a timely manner, not having the staff to cover the entire jurisdiction they were awarded, limited ability to communicate with clients due to a language barrier and incorrect billing of the services provided. 
         
Question 17:    
What is the estimated spend on these services?
        
Response:        DHR will not provide its estimated budget.  However, was the annual expenditure on this contract for last 3 years is 3,343,693.00/ year.
         
Question 18:    
If referred a case, are contractors required to accept the case based on 

requirements? For example, if there is a case referred to us in an area we do not serve, are we required to still accept it?
         
Response:    
Vendors will be required to serve the areas for which they were awarded a contract. The only valid reasons for declining a referral is if the vendor cannot adequately meet the specific care needs of the referred client, and/or cannot provide care within the needed time frame requested by the LDSS. However, three declinations within three months will require the vendor to submit a Correction Action Plan.
         
Question 19:    
For timesheet reporting, will the Department accept our (the vendor) 

                                
timesheets, or are we required to use your system?
         
Response:     
Timesheets are specific to the vendor.  However, contractors are required to complete Attachments V (Monthly Report of IHAS Provided) and W (Monthly In-Home Aide Direct Services Report) each month.   These reports provide a record of hours and tasks performed for each client during each month.
         
Question 20:   
Are there any special licensure or certification expectations of our 
                                 
healthcare professionals and/or caregivers?

Response:      
Those persons acting as a Registered Nurse shall be licensed as such. Individuals providing personal care and respite services shall be Certified Nursing Assistants (CNAs).  Per IFB Section 3.2.1 (E), CNAs shall be certified as a CNA by the Maryland Board of Nursing.  Individuals providing chore services ONLY do not require a license. Additionally, all staff shall have criminal background check verifications (see IFB Sections 3.3.2 and 3.2.9 (B)) and possess CPR certification (see IFB Section 3.2.1 (G)).
         
Question 21:    
For individually owned and operated franchises, will DHR make an exception for the 3 year in business minimum requirement if the larger company has been in operation doing IHAS for 19 years and other franchises (2) have been operating Maryland for over 5 years.
         
Response:

No.  DHR will not allow a franchisee to use the franchisor’s information/experience to meet minimum Bidder qualifications.  However, Section 1.22 allows a subsidiary (not a franchise) to use its parent company’s information to meet minimum qualifications if the parent company guarantees the subsidiary’s performance.   
         
Question 22:    
What is the current number of clients by jurisdiction?
         
Response:  

Please see the response to Question #5.

Question 23:  
What is the average number of hours per client by jurisdiction? Please 
distinguish between personal care and chore clients if there is a   significant difference.

         
Response:    
DHR cannot provide an average number of hours per client per jurisdiction.  However, the charts below show the average Statewide number of clients served each month and the total hours for Chore and Personal Care Services for State Fiscal Year 2014 (all figures rounded up to whole numbers): 
	 
	Total

	Number of Clients Served/Month
	5,309

	 
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Total Units of Service (In Hours)
	Total

	Chore Only
	58,131

	Personal Care Only
	75,056


         
Question 24:     
Please provide the rates currently contracted for by jurisdiction.
    


Response:       
Please see the response to Question #1. 

         
Question 25:    
The bid document indicates criminal background checks must be by the 
                                  
state police or the FBI. Is the State Police check the CJIS background 
                                  
check? Are commercial criminal background checks acceptable??

         
Response:
     DHR will not accept commercial criminal background checks.  However, as stated in IFB Section 3.3.2, DHR will accept FBI and/or Maryland State Police criminal background checks.  The Maryland State police check is the CJIS background check.  Additional information on that background check may be found here: http://www.dpscs.state.md.us/publicservs/bgchecks.shtml.  
         
Question 26:    
How many copies of the bid are to be submitted?
         
Response:      
Bidders shall submit one original of the entire required bid submission packet (see Section 4) in a large envelope. Within this envelope, the Bidder should include all required bid submissions, as well as separate, smaller envelopes for each jurisdiction they for which they choose to bid. In this/these separate envelope(s), Bidders should place one Bid Form (Attachment F) for each jurisdiction being bid.  




Example- If bidding on two jurisdictions, a Bidder would have a large envelope with all bid materials in it, along with two smaller envelopes (one envelope containing the Bid Form for the first jurisdiction and one envelope containing the Bid Form for the second jurisdiction).  
        
Question 27:    
During the conference it was stated that the bid must include 
                                
reference letters. The bid document states that you must provide reference 
                                 
information and contact information.  Is just reference information and 
                                 
contact information acceptable? 

        
Response:      
Bidders are required to provide three (3) letters of reference with their Bids.  See IFB Section 4.4.5 for additional details.


Question 28:    
How many patients do you have per county?


Response:   

Please see the response to Question #5.

Question 29:    
Is a drug screen required for employees?


Response:   

No, the IFB does not require drug screens.  
          Question 30:

Regarding IFB Attachments –should Bidders use the attached forms or is there another location to download them?      



Response:   

Attachments Q- W are samples only.  DHR will provide actual documents (or a means of downloading them) at the post-award kick-off meeting.  Bidders are required to submit Attachments B, E, F, G, I, N, O, and X with their Bids. DHR recommends that Bidders submit Attachment J with their Bids as well.   

Question 31:

Instructions indicate that bidders must submit bids for each option year; however, the form (Attachment F) provides no place on the form to annotate the option year for which the bid is being submitted. Will this form (Attachment F) be revised?     



Response:   

DHR has revised the Bid Form Instructions.  Please see Amendment 2.  Bidders are to submit all price information on Attachment F.  Those prices will be valid and used for each year of the Contract.   
 

